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To: the Shareholders of PJSC "IDGC of Centre"

Audited entity:

Interregional Distribution Grid Company of Centre, Public Joint Stock Company (abbreviated
name - PJSC "IDGC of Centre");

Location: 4, 2nd Yamskaya street, Moscow, 127018, the Russian Federation;

Primary state registration number — 1046900039438.

Auditor:

RSM RUS Ltd.
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Tel.. (495) 363-28-48; Fax: (495) 981-41-21,
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Association Sodruzhestvo” (Membership Certificate # 6938, ORNZ 11306030308 (number in the register of
auditing organizations), location: 21, Michurinsky avenue, bldg. 4, Moscow, 119192.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PJSC "IDGC of Centre',
which comprise consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows,
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2015, notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Audited entity's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The management of PJSC "IDGC of Centre" is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and for the
system of intemal control relevant to the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the faimess of these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with Federal Auditing Standards and International Standards
on Auditing. These Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit included performing audit procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The audit procedures selected depend on our judgment, which is based
on the assessment of the risk of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we considered the system of interal control which ensures the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to select appropriate audit procedures, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

An audit also included evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the management of the audited entity, as well as evaluating the overal
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the faimess of these consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of PJSC "IDGC of Centre" and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, the results of their financial
performance and cash flows for 2015 in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.

Management Board Chairwoman N.A. Dantser

Audit Certificate No. 05-000015. Issued following Resolution of
self-regulatory organization Not-for-Profit Partnership “Russian
Collegium of Auditors’ dated 15 November 2011 No. 24.
Permanent award.

ORNZ - 29605011647

Audit Manager E.A. Gareeva

Audlt Certificate No. 05-000086. Issued following Resolution of
self-requlatory organization Not-for-Profit Partnership “Russian
Collegium of Auditors’ dated 14 February 2012 No. 4.
Permanent award.

ORNZ - 21005006455




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December
2015

Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Revenue 7 80,830,287 86,991,622
Operating expenses 8 (75,204,444) (88,958,841)
Other income 7 1,448,480 1,199,392
Results from operating activities 7,074,323 (767,827)
Finance income 10 308,245 143,028
Finance costs 10 (4,581,801) (2,773,539)
Net finance costs (4,273,556) (2,630,511)
(Loss) / profit before income tax 2,800,767 (3,398,338)
Income tax benefit / (expense) 11 (1,919,820) 113,817
(Loss) / profit for the year 880,947 (3,284,521)
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 15 70,683 (11,533)
Income tax on other comprehensive income (14,137) 2,307
Total items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss 56,546 (9,226)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 24 (181,439) 585,257
Income tax on other comprehensive income 27,476 (43,617)
Total items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss (153,963) 541,640
Other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year, net of
income tax (97,417) 532,414
Total comprehensive (expense) / income for the year 783,530 (2,752,107)
(Loss) / profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 852,807 (3,318,288)
Non-controlling interests 28,140 33,767
880,947 (3,284,521)
Total comprehensive (expense) / income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 755,390 (2,785,874)
Non-controlling interests 28,140 33,767
783,530 (2,752,107)
(Loss) / earnings per share — basic and diluted
(in Russian Roubles) 0.020 (0.079)
These consolidated financial statements h 2016
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The consolidated statemeni™ef profit or loss And other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and
forming part of, the consolidatedfinancial statements 1 - 33.

General Director
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PISC “IDGC of Centre”
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015
Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 77,639,154 73,086,442
Intangible assets 13 1,797,450 590,998
Investments and financial assets 15 673,062 550,639
Other non-current assets 16 65,768 86,794
Total non-current assets 80,175,434 74,314,873
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17 123,220 395,836
Trade and other receivables 18 16,762,252 16,271,633
Income tax prepayment 1,375,661 1,003,113
Inventories 19 2,012,403 1,808,539
Toetal current assets 20,273,536 19,479,121
Total assets 100,448,970 93,793,994
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 20
Share capital 4,221,794 4,221,794
Reserves (134,911) (37,494)
Retained earnings 34,672,186 34,647,003
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company 38,759,069 38,831,303
Non-controlling interests 127,274 100,359
Total equity 38,886,343 38,931,662
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 40,435,180 27,670,000
Finance lease liabilities 23 - 1,503
Employee benefits 24 2,344,882 2,051,491
Deferred tax liabilities 14 5,177,990 4,019,997
Trade and other payables 26 380,688 580,143
Total non-current liabilities 48,338,740 34,323,134
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 1,676,505 9,609,936
Finance lease liability 23 1,503 82,485
Trade and other payables 26 8,311,537 8,039,441
Provisions 26 1,099,872 1,162,928
Employee payables 25 640,000 641,845
Income tax payable 71 9,369
Other taxes payable 27 1,494,399 993,194
Total current liabilities 13,223,887 20,539,198
Total liabilities 61,562,627 54,862,332
Total equity and liabilities 100,448,970 93,793,994
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The consolidated statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the consolidated
financial statements 1 - 33.
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PISC “IDGC of Centre”
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
(Loss) / profit for the year 880,947 (3,284.521)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets 8,12,13 7,812,923 8,572,361
Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment 8,12 728,846 9,056,722
Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable 7.8 1,504,937 (179,551)
Net finance costs 10 4,273,556 2,630,511
Provision for inventory obsolescence (3.700) 1,810
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 160,011 342,581
Bad debts written-off 8 245,118 34,951
Income tax expense 11 1,919,820 (113,817)
Adjustment for other non-cash transactions (796,974) (353,716)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working
capital 16,725,484 16,707,331
Change in trade and other receivables (2,375.811) (3,495,348)
Change in inventories (123,830) 261,587
Change in investments, financial assets and other non-current and current
assets (53,674) 5,327
Change in trade and other payables 68,722 (1,330,697)
Change in employee payables (50,034) (137,273)
Change in employee benefits (111,927) (78,856)
Change in other liabilities (14,867) 3,962
Change in other taxes payable 501,205 (137,827)
Cash flows from operations before income taxes and interest paid 14,565,268 11,798,206
Interest paid (4,427,615) (2,800,649)
Income tax paid (1,047,863) (1,038,010)
Cash flows from operating activities 9,089,790 7,959,547
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (13,579,085) (12,476,557)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets 25,684 7,332
Dividends received 10 17,526 25,056
Interest received 10 290,719 117,972
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,934 79
Cash flows used in investing activities (13,243,222) (12,326,118)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 26,099,722 11,839,393
Repayment of loans and borrowings (21,311,491) (7,689,675)
Dividends paid (824,930) (75,666)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (82,485) (426,587)
Cash flows from financing activities 3,880,816 3,647,465
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (272,616) (719,106)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 395,836 1,114,942
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17 123,220 395,836

8

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the consolidated
financial statements set out on pages 9 — 52.




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

1 BACKGROUND

(a) The Group and its operations

Public Joint-Stock Company “IDGC of Centre” (hereinafter - the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter together
referred to as the “Group™) comprise Russian public and joint stock companies as defined in the Civil Code of the
Russian Federation. The Company was set up on 17 December 2004 based on Resolution no. 154p of 9 December
2004 and pursuant to the Board of Directors’ decision (board of directors’ meeting minutes no. 178 of 1 October 2004)
and Management Board decision (Management Board minute no. 1102 of 15 November 2004) of Open Joint-Stock
Company RAO “United Energy Systems of Russia” (hereinafter - “RAO UES”). From 07 July 2015, OJSC “IDGC of
Centre” is renamed as PJSC “IDGC of Centre” based on the Decision of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of OJSC “IDGC of Centre” dated 25.06.2015 (minutes No. 01/15 of 26.06.2015), in order to bring it in line with the
legal requirements.

The Company’s registered office is 29, Yamskaya, 4, Moscow, 127018, Russia.
The Company’s de facto address is 2™, Yamskaya, 4, Moscow, 127018, Russia.

The Group’s principal activity is the transmission of electricity and the connection of customers to the electricity grid.
In 2013 and 2014 pursuant to orders of the Russian Ministry of Energy, "On the transfer of the functions of electricity
supplier" the Group was performing power distribution services in several regions it operates (Note 7).

The Group consists of PJSC “IDGC of Centre” and its subsidiaries, presented in Note 3.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Government of the Russian Federation owned 85.31% of the
shares of PISC “Russian Grids” (formerly OJSC “IDGC Holding™), which in turn owned 50.23% of the shares of the
Company. OJSC “IDGC Holding” was renamed OJSC “Russian Grids” following the decision made on 23 March
2013 at an Extraordinary General Meeting of Sharcholders of OJSC “IDGC Holding”. OJSC “Russian Grids” was
renamed PJSC “Russian Grids” following the decision made on 30 June 2015 at an Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders of OJSC “Russian Grids”, in order to bring it in line with the legal requirements.

The Government of the Russian Federation influences the Group’s activities through setting transmission tariffs.

(b) Russian business environment

The Group’s operations are located in the Russian Federation, consequently, the Group is exposed to the economic
and financial markets of the Russian Federation. Russia continues economic reforms and development of its legal,
tax and regulatory frameworks. The future stability of the Russian economy is largely dependent upon these reforms
and developments and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the
Government.

In 2014, the Russian economy was negatively impacted by macroeconomic factors, including devaluation of the
Russian Rouble. In December 2014, the Rouble interest rates increased significantly after the Central Bank of Russia
raised its key rate. The combination of the above resulted in reduced access to capital, a higher cost of capital, increased
inflation and uncertainty regarding economic growth. In 2015, the situation has leveled off. The Central Bank of Russia
has repeatedly reduced the key interest rate; exchange rate fluctuations and inflation have been smoothed. However,
risks remain that the combination of economic factors could negatively affect the Group’s future financial position,
results of operations and business prospects.

Management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the Group’s business in the
current circumstances.

The consolidated financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Russian business
environment on the operations and the financial position of the Group. The future business environment may differ
from management’s assessment.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements (hereinafter “Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”, “IASs™).




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

(b) Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for available-for-sale financial assets
measured at fair value; and property, plant and equipment which was revalued to determine deemed cost as part of
the adoption of IFRS as at 1 January 2007.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of the Russian Federation is the Russian Rouble (“RUB™), which is the functional currency of
the Company and all its subsidiaries, and the currency in which these Financial Statements are presented.

All financial information presented in RUB has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

e Note 28 — allowances for impairment of trade and other receivables;
e Note 29 — lease classification.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year is included in the following note:

e Note 12 — determining the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment;
s Note 24 — employee benefits

e Note 31 — contingencies.
(e) Changes in accounting policies and data presentation

The Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in Note 3 to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

The following new or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

e [FRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”.

e Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS 11).

e  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38).
e Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27).

e  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10
and [AS 28).

e  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle — various standards.
e Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28).

e Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1).

Certain amounts of the previous year have been adjusted to conform with the current year disclosures.

10




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

When necessary, comparative information for the prior periods has been reclassified due to the application of the
extended data presentation. The quantitative impact of this reclassification on the comparative information specified
in the statement for the 12 months of 2015 is set out below.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

31 December 2014

As previously

Effect of change

As restated

Revenue
Operating expenses

Other operating income

Results from operating activities
Finance income

Finance costs

Net finance costs
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the period

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

31 December 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable
Net finance costs

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on bad debts written-off

Income tax expense

Adjustments for other non-cash transactions

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in
working capital

reported
86,991,622 = 86,991,622
(88,940.,055) (18.786) (88,958,841)
1,199,392 - 1,199,392
(749,041) (18.786) (767,827)
124,242 18,786 143,028
(2,773,539) . (2,773.539)
(2,649,297) 18,786 (2,630,511)
(3,398,338) - (3.398.338)
113,817 - 113,817
(3.284,521) . (3.284,521)
As previously reported  Effect of change As restated
(3,284,521) - (3,284,521)
8,572,361 = 8, 572,361
9,056,722 - 9,056,722
(179,551) = (179,551)
2,649,297 (18,786) 2,630,511
1,810 - 1,810
342,581 - 342,581
34,951 - 34,951
(113.817) - (113,817)
(353,716) - (353,716)
16,726,117 (18,786) 16,707,331

11




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

31 December 2014 As previously reported Effect of change

As restated

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets (12,476,557) - (12,476,557)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7332 7332
Dividends received 25,056 - 25,056
Interest received 99,186 18,786 117,972
Proceeds from sale of investments 79 - 79
Cash flows used in investing activities (12,344,904) 18,786 (12,326,118)

In Note 8 “Operaling expenses” information of expenditure items “Communication services” and “Other expenses”

was updated:

31 December 2014 As previously reported Effect of change As restated
Communication services 44,847 239,719 284,566
Other expenses 2,847,065 (239,719) 2,607,346

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

(ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential
voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

e the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

e the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus,

e if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
e the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

12




PISC “IDGC of Centre”
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination, are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

W) Business combinations involving entities under common control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that
controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised.
The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the acquired entity’s
IFRS consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same
components within Group equity except that any share capital of the acquired entities is recognised as part of retained
earnings. Any cash paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in equity.

(b) Financial instruments
() Non-derivative financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets comprise investments in equity, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents.
The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated. All other
financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets
that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are a category of financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables category comprise the following classes of financial assets: trade and other receivables as
presented in Note 16 and Note 18, and cash and cash equivalents as presented in Note 17.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and highly liquid investments with maturities at initial recognition
of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale and that
are not classified in any of the above categories of financial assets. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value
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plus any directly atiributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than impairment losses (see note 3(f)(i)), are recognised in other comprehensive income and
presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When an investment is derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities that are not quoted on a stock exchange and where fair value cannot be reliably
measured are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity securities.

(i) Non-derivative financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liability category.

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

(©) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment at 1 January 2007, the date of transition to IFRSs, was determined by
reference to its fair value at that date.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing of assets and restoring the site on which
they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and is recognised net within other
income/other expenses in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent expenditure

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Group
and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of
the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land
is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment by type of facility are as follows:

e Buildings 7 — 50 years;
e Transmission networks 5 —4{ years;
e Equipment for electricity transformation 3 — 20 years;
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e Other 1—25 years.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate.

(iv) Leased assets

Assets held by the Group under leases that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower
of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position.
Operating lease payments (net of benefits granted by the lessor) are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

W) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(@) Intangible assets
(@) Intangible assets other than Goodwill

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets,
other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
e Computer software 1—10 years;

e Other intangible assets 1 — 20 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. The cost of inventories is determined
using the weighted average cost method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.
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()] Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or delinquency
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers, economic
conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence
of impairment.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between
its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Group considers
that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities are recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the
fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity securities is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For
the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate
assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of
the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

(2 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.
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(h) Revenue

Revenue from electricity transmission is recognised based on acts of services rendered. The act is prepared in respect
of each counterparty in accordance with the concluded contract on the provision of services based on the meter readings
and the “boiler” tariffs approved by the Regional Energy Commission of each region of the Group’s operations.

Revenue from the sale of electricity is recognized based on:

e monthly acts of acceptance of electricity under the electricity supply agreements (electricity sale agreements) of
legal entities based on the meter readings and unregulated prices formed on the retail market in the settlement
period;

e monthly documents (receipts) on the consumption of utilities services by individuals based on the meter readings
and tariffs approved by the Regional Energy Commission.

Revenue from connection services represents a non-refundable fee for connecting the customer to the electricity grid
network. The tariffs for connection services are approved by the Federal Tariff Agency and Regional Energy
Commission of each region of the Group’s operations. The terms, conditions and amounts of these fees are negotiated
separately and are independent from fees generated by electricity transmission services. Revenue is recognised when
electricity is activated and the customer is connected to the grid network or, for contracts where connection services
are performed in stages, revenue is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion when an act of acceptance is
signed by the customer.

Revenue from installation, repair and maintenance services and other sales is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer or when the services are provided.
(i) Finance income and costs

Finance income comprises interest income on cash balances and bank deposits and dividend income. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in profit
or loss on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, employee benefits and finance leases. Borrowing costs that
are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualified asset are recognised in profit
or loss using the effective interest method.

(1)) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

e temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

e temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future;

e taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes, penalties and late-payment interest may be due. The Group believes that its
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accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including
interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve
a series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its
judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact the tax expense
in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

In accordance with the tax legislation of the Russian Federation, tax losses and current tax assets of a company in the
Group may not be set off against taxable profits and current tax liabilities of other Group companies. In addition, the
tax base is determined separately for each of the Group’s main activities and, therefore, tax losses and taxable profits
related to different activities cannot be offset.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

(k) Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans, including Russia’s State pension fund, are recognised as an employee benefit
expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(i) Defined benefits plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of plan assets are
deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the
benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCIL The Group determines the net interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(iii) Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension plans is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations as at reporting date and that are denominated in the same currency in which the
benefits are expected to be paid.
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The Group calculates obligation in respect of other long-term employee benefits using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(iv) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and if the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

()] Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(m) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

(n) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Management Board, the Group’s
operating decision making body, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Management Board, the Group’s operating decision making body, include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

(0) Service Concession Arrangements

The Group applies IFRIC Interpretation 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” (IFRIC 12) to public-to-private
service concession arrangements if:

e the grantor controls or regulates what services the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it
must provide them, and at what price; and
e the grantor controls—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise—any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.
The Group accounts for revenue and costs relating to construction services in accordance with IAS 11 and accounts
for revenue and costs relating to electricity transmission in accordance with IAS 18.
The consideration for construction or upgrade services received or receivable by the Group is recognised at its fair
value.
The Group recognizes a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or
another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services; the grantor has little, if any,
discretion to avoid payment, usually because the agreement is enforceable by law.
The Group recognizes an intangible asset to the extent that it receives a right to charge users of the public service.
As to the financial asset - the amount receivable from the grantor or by his orders, is accounted for in accordance with
IAS 39:
e aloan or account receivable;
e financial asset, available-for-sale; or
» financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss if on initial recognition the criteria for such
classification are met.
The Group recognizes an intangible asset in accordance with IAS 38. Paragraphs 45-47 of IAS 38 provide guidance
on measuring intangible assets acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets or a combination of monetary
and non-monetary assets. Amortization period is defined as a duration of the Service Concession Arrangements. The
Group tests the intangible asset for impairment in accordance with [AS 36.
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The Group capitalizes the borrowing costs attributable to the construction stage of the Service Concession Agreement
as part of an intangible asset, in accordance with IAS 23. The Group recognizes other borrowing costs attributable to
the Service Concession Agreement as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(1)) New Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations are not yet effective as at 31 December
2015, and have not been applied in preparing Consolidated Financial Statements. Of these pronouncements, potentially
the following will have an impact on the Group’s operations. The Group plans to adopt these pronouncements when
they become effective.

e In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. The final version of IFRS 9
replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS
9 brings together the requirements for the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting of
financial instruments. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
earlier application permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the standard on the consolidated
financial statements.

e IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” will come into effect for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The new standard specifies the financial reporting requirements for regulatory deferral account balances that
arise when an entity provides goods or services to customers at a price or rate that is subject to rate regulation. The
Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the standard on its financial position or performance.

e IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” will come into effect for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. The new standard establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful information
to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from a contract with a customer. The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the standard on its financial
position or performance.

e Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible assets” - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation. The amendments clarify that a revenue-based method is
not considered to be an appropriate manifestation of consumption. The amendments are applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, early application permitted. The Group does not expect the
amendments to have material impact on its financial position and performance.

e IFRS 16 “Leases” is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, earlier application
is permitted if IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” is also adopted. IFRS 16 replaces the existing
lease accounting guidance in IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a lease”,
SIC-15 “Operating Leases — Incentives” and SIC-27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease™. It eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which distinguishes between on-
balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet
accounting model that is similar to current finance lease accounting. Lessor accounting remains similar to current
practice — i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance and operating leases.

e Various Improvements to IFRSs have been dealt with on a standard-by-standard basis. All amendments, which
result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purposes, will come into effect for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2016. The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the
improvements on its financial position or performance.

4 MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair value, for both financial

and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair
values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques
as follows.

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the Note 28.

5 SUBSIDIARIES

List of subsidiaries

. . 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Country of incorporation . . N
Ownership/voting, % Ownership/voting, %

JSC “Sanatorium “Energetic” Russian Federation 100 100

JSC "Yaroslavl Electric Grid Russian Federation 51 51
Company"

0OJSC “Yargorelectroset™ Russian Federation - 100

OJSC “Energy Service Russian Federation - 100
Company”

CJSC “Innovation and energy Russian Federation 51 51

efficiency center”

In September 2014, the Company as the sole shareholder of OJSC “Yargorelectroset” took the decision to liquidate
OJSC “Yargorelectroset™ on a voluntary basis. On 15 April 2015 OJSC “Yargorelectroset” was liquidated. Power grid
facilities and other property of OJSC “Yargorelectroset” providing transmission of electricity and the connection of
customers to the electricity grid were transferred to the Company, as the sole shareholder.

On 8 July 2015, OJSC *“Yaroslavl Electric Grid Company” was renamed JSC “Yaroslavl Electric Grid Company”
following the decision made on 26 June 2015 at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of OJSC “Yaroslavl
Electric Grid Company” (Minutes of 26.06.2015 NeQ1/15) in order to bring it in line with the legal requirements.

On 7 October 2015, OJISC “Energetic” was renamed JSC “Sanatorium "Energetic” following the decision of the sole
shareholder of OJSC “Energetic” made on 07.09.2015 (Minutes of 07.09.2015 Ne30/15) in order to bring it in line with
the legal requirements.

In August 2014, OJSC “Energy Service Company” in court has been declared bankrupt. Bankruptcy administration
procedure started in the Company, bankruptcy trustee was appointed. The Group believes that as at 31.12.2015, there
are no signs of control in accordance with IFRS 10 "Consolidated financial statements" including the ability to obtain
information necessary for the exercise of their powers (including financial and other information required to determine
the value of assets and liabilities under IFRS), the ability to use their powers over the company to affect the amount
of returns, as well as the opportunity to participate in decisions regarding the financial and operating policies of the
company, and other signs.

6 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group has eleven reportable segments representing branches of the Company, as described below. These are the
Group’s strategic business units and are the Company’s branches. The strategic business units offer similar services
representing transmission of electric power and connection services and are managed separately. In addition in 2013
and 2014 five divisions (Bryanskenergo, Kurskenergo, Oryolenergo, Tverenergo and Smolenskenergo) were
performing electricity supplier functions (see Note 7). For each of the strategic business units, the Management Board,
the Group’s operating decision making body, reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis.

“Others” include operations of subsidiaries and the head office branch. None of them meets any of the quantitative
thresholds for determining reportable segments in 2015 or 2014.
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Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on
segment earnings before interest expense, income tax and depreciation and amortisation — EBITDA, as included in the
internal management reports that are reviewed by the Management Board.

Segment reports are based on the information reported in statutory accounts, which differ significantly from the
consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS. The reconciliation of items measured as reported to the
Management Board with similar items in these Financial Statements includes those reclassifications and adjustments
that are necessary for financial statements to be presented in accordance with IFRS.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment.

22




£C

Juaurdas a[qepedar Jo asuadys pue swosut Yo spajout sananoe Suneledo woy s)nsey

L8T166'TL STL'9S PEV'ILE'T  68€'98¢°T 0TE89T°1 TETELL'L 1ET9LE 616°SS0°1 LEL86Y £¥T'L99 800'49C°1 809°L¥T IP'S8F'E sanyipuadxa [ende))
$86'€LI'T9 690°08F'Sr  808'SSP'T  FICTSH'E  BITSRIL S90°0S0°T  980°10S ISE'S6T'1 T16°08Z'1 001°0%9 685'018°1 6FI'8LL PLT'BLIE sanuIqer|
Juaw3as a[qertoday
6SE'6PS'S6 £8€°992 9I9E6E'6  PPLITFS  69T'0p8‘D EVI'ELED  TOVTEE'E TLL'ETF ST SOP'TIR'G L6S60T'S LY6°LES 01 9€0'91Z' $80'zze'zz  uowdmba pue juerd ‘Kuadosg
LOOOIT'BIT  691'T91'T B68'PSL'TT ETE'CSE'Cl  1Z6'9S8'S LST'ROb'8 PLE'E96'E I€€°878'ST 900°956°L 60E'C08‘S S60°LOT'ZI TTT'SLL'S T0TLIT'ST 513558 Juawdas Aqeroday
PSLLIEST THS'T6 TTS'SOI'T  16EPLY SP0'916 ¥88°6LE'1 1L9°06€ 98L919'] 195169 £96'190°1 959°€v1'T L9 OPE 99¢°768'€ vallgd
$90'€80°6 065°€T 0LO'1LS 91 TH9 L9TSLE 186°618 1SL°PSE FES 060" 088°9€L 0£T61¢ 15L'888 LLO'EEY 1LL°8TET UOnBSILIOUIE pue UoneIIRIda(
LEY'TEO'T SEE'89 1L9'€ER (801°6€8)  8LF'TOZ THLET (pos*Lr1) LPLIST (19.°852) 955°78¢ TLL'6T8 (956°LE) 999°p10°1 XE}
Awodul 10j9q (sso))agoad
Juawsas dqeproday
(€s0'961'y)  (L19) (r1sc'o0p)  (Lec'ze8)  (00€°65E) (191'9p8)  (yz'esl) (s0s*+¥2) (Thr'e1T) (LLroor)  (p1°sTy) (9¥Z'192) (626°8pS) §)502 0uRUL]
0L9'L9T €8¢ SS6°LT 698'0 EIPET PII'91 63001 126'1¢ $99°5T IEF 11 L9L'9E 190°81 £00°6S SWIOIUY aoUeULy
020°196°s 69589 L6F'90T'T  09€°TI S9€°LTS 68L'EpE 1£8'sT T€E'P6R (€86°0L) T0€°1€S SEI'RIT'T (rLLvor) 765808°T » SANIAROE
Sunesado wo.y synsay
€95°LST 08 8SE°0FE TZI'B90°8  69¥'6P8'S  TT9'THLD IPS'PII'9 0€€'SSLE 160°F18'8 LES'SS5' 690°991°p 8S8‘80T°11 TES0EP'Y STO'TII'ET SINUIAML [BJO ],
996'T 080°1 6L8°1 - L - - - - - = - " aNUDADI JUSWIFOS-IoYu]
10S°6L6 PO¥'LS 9EL T THO'LY £08'TE 8€9°L6 018'9¢ 688°61 ¥or'vy 9p1°6€ S16'¢2l L9T°€9 LLY €8T INUIAL RO
2 % = - " - = " J - " - - ANUIASI JUBWISAS-1aIU]
- e - = - - = - = - - - = Ayroedes pue Lommoss
JO 918521 1) WL SNUSAY
“ - - - o - . = 5 - = - & anuaAdI JUWFos-Iu]
GLS 6911 LLR'G 0b6°vPT S08°9%p1 L6¥'LT 0EE 121 [Ep'S1 1SLEL 8O1°LY §97'88 TT6'991 SLL9 818'0zz 8adJAl0S
uon»uuod WO aNUdAY
LOG°ILT LO6'ILT - - - - - - - - . : = anuaAS JUBW0S-103u]
OI9CEL LL z LOS6OL'L  TT9'SS9'8  POETRY £55°668°C 680°C1L°E [SF069'8 - ST6E'EOF'D 8S9°2C0° 12+'916°01 06+°09€" 0€5°L09°C1 uossrusuen
A)o1n091e WO SNUIASY
w10], S1Y10 0300248 0F1uUdIIA L o0dul 0349ud 031U2210) 0310u) 03aauaySINY odaaud WIETTE) od1aud [-¥ETIE)
=AO(UIE |, -jsudjowg -js3adry ~BUWO)SOY ~[ZIUOI0A “Nsusiig -poaodjag
‘ST0T 12quaoe(J | € Popus Ieak a1 I0] pue j Sy
SauiSas apqriodas mogy uoyvuLiofuy 1)

PIIDIS 2SIMAIYIO SSAJUN "SA|GROY UDISSHY JO SPUDSHOY |
SIOT 4oquadaq | ¢ papua avad ay) 4of S vIg IDI2UDUL PAIDPIIOSUO)) 21} OF SIION]
«21U2) Jo DDA, ISId




vC

uewias aqupodal Jo asuadxs PuE AWOOU] JDYI0 APN[OUT SINTATIR Bunelado wor SINSY

9T IRE'TT 86T'50T T8O'TLO'T  BPO'SIT'T 08T'1ZS TCL980'T £SL°609 L8Y'TIRL 612°¢06 0TL'189 1L6'66€°1 860°C1S 859°9¢HT
TLSL6T9S ETI'8IS'IF  STL6ST'T  90ESII'E  Tbb'ee9 HPOILT 8LI'SKS PIF'POE T ££8°066 0SF'S€9 S9TT09°1 099°7€S SEL'LBRT
8LT'8III6 155107 066°17E'L  SLIOITL  €08'0F6'E 096°S66°S 8SYPLT'E 999°€It el £80°F6L9 TETRIEF  6SE0ET0T 8E0TTV'Y  £56'V59°1T
66V P98I 89L'0SI'S 6L6'BLE'G  BER'PLL'TT  SPT'LOS'Y 088 19%°L PLL'ELS'E €6£'S09°S1  S09°TS0'8 G9T'ILS'S  00T'FSOII IPTL8Y'9  LOEOPO'PT
P91 BSI'ILE OPI'SLE' 1 551998 08+°TSL 8E1°6TT1 0S0°L19 610°LOF'T 88L°C68 $TSTR6 PIELSTT T59°€68 661°'7£9°E
I0T°LZS'8 ET1°28T £0L°699 STTLLS L8TL¥E 9TL'SHL 165°Z¢€€ 699°086 19Z°889 L96°€9% 6TT'E8L 006°90% OLV'6LE'T
TEH'9S0°S PSSTEI 0LO'SES (L69'TET)  9f1‘TST 8S1°861 9ZESST 6LE'LTT1 68099 758'96€ 8I96LE°T §97°'99 789°808
(160°825°7) (16¥°92) (er€'092)  (Lz9'0zk)  (LS0°€5T) (psT's87) (gL1°621) (126°861) (8EH TH1) (90L121) (L9¥'pTT) (L8¥'0zI) (Lp0'oby)
69S°ZI1 P16 TLS'PT 6068 obL'S SETL PEPE 995'6 0L0°¢ ort's POF91 LIEET 796°81
PS6ILY L IET'E1T 1L8°06L 120°08T LPH 66E LLT'9LY S90°‘18C PRLOTH'T LSPPOT BIT‘EIS 189'L8F'T SEP'ELL LIL'SETY
0S1°900°88 BL6'00ET GIV'E6Y'L  STY00III  8SH68Y'F TEG'LIE'S IL6°€08'E £98°16L°8 999°1SL'L LIS'LTO'P  169‘0PL‘0T 0P1°998°L 0P8'S19°TI
S16'vL 601°%1 908 - - Z = s - 3 - = s
POLSHI‘T 1Z8'0%1 PLL'EY 788°¢9 [yaalils Z8E'00€ Z8£°0¢ LTP'9E §59°st 96¥°€E ¥79°801 7S6°LE FrSIIST
LOT*00E'S - E 181691 - 00T'et'e 979661 - 9EE'CR0'] = - PrLCOY'T =
LLT = LLT - - ® - - - - - = -
8P0°9F9'T £8L°061 108°101 0p9°18% £8' 1€ PLI'CL 88T 09Z°LL vTL 181 DE6°6S LLL'S8T £reE6l 119°651
6I8SE0'T $97°566 $95°0t - z - “ - = = - - S
OI8°€98°SL 5 L6YO0E'L  TTE'68E'S  0SLLTr'd 9€£T'T08°S 190°678°¢ 9LI'8L9'] 1S6°8€H°9 IVI'PE6'E  06Z°9E01 101°901°S S89°b0T'TI
[elo], SO 03.0uaae)  0840uaIIA | odnud 03.1aud 0319u3[21Q 08a9u2 019Uy sANY 0B1aud 0319ud 03.12u2 0342u2
~AOQUIB ], -jsuajomrg -ys3adry -BII0.1)1S0Y “YZIUOIO0 A susdig -poJodjag

amyrpuadxe jendey

saniqern
Juawas ajqeytodoy

Juatudinbe
pue juerd ‘Auadoryg

$)358® JUIWEIS dqeroday
valgd

uorjesIIowWeR
pue uonerzaidacg

XE)
wWodul 10§3q (ssop)Ayo.d
Juaw s Jqepaoday

§1500 aouBLL]
QWOOUT S2URUL]

» SADIALE
Suneaado wouy synsay

SANUIAL [BJO ],
SNUIAII JUSIIZOS-103U]
SNUIAI IBYIQ
ANUIAST WIWFS-10]U]

Aredes pue Anownoee
JO 9[BSaI 3] WO ANUIADY
anuoALI U Bas-Joyu]

SOOIAIRS
UOI02TUOD WO SNUIADY

INUDAII JUSWIFIS-Ia)u]

UOISSIUISURT]
Anowoate woy anuaAsy

‘P10T 12qUIadA(] | £ PIPUS 1eak oU} I0J Pue je sy

PajvIs asim4ayio Ssajun ‘Sajquoy unissnyf fo spupsnoy j
SI10Z 42qua2a( [ £ papua 1034 ay) 10f suauavlg IPIUDULL PIIOPIIOSHO?) Y} OF SIION]
«24U3D) 0 DOAT, ISrd




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

(i) Major customer

In 2015 revenue from one customer of the Group’s segment (Belgorodenergo) represented approximately 9% (RUB

6,991,523 thousand) of the Group’s total revenue (in 2014 - RUB 8,581,739 thousand or 10%

revenue).

of the Group’s total

(iii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss and assets and liabilities

Reconciliation of key segment items measured as reported to the Management Board with similar items in these

Consolidated Financial Statements is presented in the tables below.

Revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue
Reclassification

Consolidated revenue

EBITDA for the reportable segments

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment
Adjustments for property, plant and equipment

Recognition of assets related to employee benefit fund
Recognition of employee benefit obligations

Adjustment for finance lease

Adjustment for allowance for impairment of account receivables
Provision for inventory obsolescence

Amortisation of intangible assets

Adjustment for litigation provision

Other adjustments

Consolidated earnings before interest, tax and depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA)

Depreciation and amortization

Interest expenses

Interest on finance lease liabilities

Interest expense on employee benefit obligations
Interest income

Income tax expense

(Loss) / profit for the year per Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended
31 December 2015

Year ended
31 December 2014

80,157,563 88,006,150
(274,873) (1,051,021)
947,597 36,493
80,830,287 86,991,622
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

15,311,754 16,111,624
(728,846) (9,056,722)
(109,966) (125.416)
53,674 30,016
111,927 78,856
82,858 429,014
(29,880) 20,564
(165) 756
202,065 287,973
302,070 170,897
15,195,491 7,947,562
(7,812,923) (8,572,361)
(4,352,520) (2,512,823)
(5,402) (72,463)
(223,879) (188,253)
(1,919,820) 113,817
880,947 (3.284,521)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

Assets

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Total assets for reportable segments 118,216,007 113,864,499
Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment (728,846) (9,056,722)
Elimination of cost of investments in subsidiaries (17,295) (1,117,395)
Elimination of other inter-segment assets (33,025 (418,391)
Adjustments for net book value of property, plant and equipment (17,181,359) (9,023,891)
Recognition of assets related to employee benefit fund 438,693 385,019
Adjustment for allowance for impairment of account receivables = 29,880
Provision for inventory obsolescence (L,717) (1,495)
Adjustment for deferred tax (1,203,808) (1,022,384)
Other adjustments 960,320 154,874
Consolidated total assets 100,448,970 93,793,994

Liabilities 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Total liabilities for reportable segments 61,673,985 56,197,572
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities (34,852) (417,168)
Adjustment for finance lease 1,503 83,988
Recognition of employee benefit obligations 2,344,882 2,051,491
Adjustment for deferred tax (2,346,030) (2,999.413)
Other adjustments (76,861) (54,138)
Consolidated total liabilities 61,562,627 54,862,332
7 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
For the year ended 31 December, revenue includes:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Electricity transmission 77,733,610 69,110,930
Revenue from the resale of electricity and capacity - 15,052,987
Connection services 1,169,579 1,646,048
Repairs and maintenance 311,300 476,209
Rent 55,313 66,953
Service Concession Arrangements 972,341 =
Other 588,144 638,495
80,830,287 86,991,622

Revenue from connection services represents a non-refundable fee for connecting the customer to the electricity grid
network.

In 2013 pursuant to orders of the Russian Ministry of Energy, "On the transfer of the functions of electricity supplier”
the Company started to perform the functions of electricity supplier in Bryansk, Oryol, Kursk, Tver and Smolensk
regions. Hence, in addition to performing power transmission services, some divisions of the Company commenced
performing power distribution services, including purchasing electricity on the wholesale market and selling it on the
retail market, and entering into power purchase agreements with all customers, including householders. The period
within which the functions of electricity supplier are to be performed was established prior to the effective date of the
decision to provide the tender winner with the electricity supplier status in the abovementioned operating areas, but
not more than 12 months. In the first half of 2014 following the decision of the Russian Ministry of Energy function
of electricity supplier in Bryansk, Orel, Kursk, Tver and Smolensk regions was transferred from the Company to OJSC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

“AtomEnergoSbyt”, LLC “TEK-Energo” and the subsidiary of OJSC “Inter RAO UES”. Since February 2014 the
Company started performing the function of electricity supplier in the area of LLC “Tveroblenergosbyt™ in Tver

region,

There is no revenue from the resale of electricity and capacity in 2015 (in 2014, revenue from the resale of electricity
and capacity includes the part of revenue of RUB 6,752,880 thousand related to transmission of electricity which is
sold under power supply contracts). Tariff for sale of electricity under power supply contracts is calculated taking into

account the transmission fee.

Revenue under the Service Concession Arrangement is the consideration for the services related to the construction of
objects of the Service Concession Arrangement, subject to receipt by the Group, and represented the rights to the
intangible asset. The consideration payable is recognised at its fair value (Note 13).

For the years ended 31 December, other income includes:

Income from gratuitously received property, plant and equipment (including
excess inventory)

Income in the form of fines and penalties
Net income from reversal of allowance for impairment of accounts receivable

Income in the form of the cost of inventories obtained by disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Income from reimbursement of costs and damages

Income from the identified non-contractual electricity consumption
Compensation of insurance claims

Write-off of accounts payable

Revenues from gratuitously received inventories (including excess inventory)
Other

8 OPERATING EXPENSES

Electricity transmission

Personnel costs (Note 9)

Purchased electricity to compensate for losses
Depreciation and amortisation

Raw materials and supplies

Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable
Taxes other than income tax

Costs of Service Concession Arrangements

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment
Losses of previous years

Rent

Repairs, maintenance and installation services
Information services

Electricity for own needs

Security

Provisions

Communication services

Bad debt written-off

Year ended
31 December 2015

Year ended
31 December 2014

714,565 413,156
292,346 188,383
- 179,551
126,071 115,378
82,240 94,298
72,959 90,127
52,980 41,342
20,871 26,017
127 B
86,321 51,140
1,448,480 1,199,392
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
26,435,032 26,530,346
17,798,496 16,684,669
10,640,307 10,056,845
7,812,923 8,572,361
2,666,635 2,600,372
1,504,937 -
1,074,812 882,910
875,983 -
728,846 9,056,722
630,319 1,430,683
549,588 524,064
510,017 512,312
338,715 271,969
323,364 380,473
298,700 307,732
277,947 378,272
274,352 284,566
245,118 34,951

27




PJSC “IDGC of Centre”
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Insurance 144,460 124,945
Consulting, legal and audit services 41,734 162,532
Transportation costs 8,184 5,921
Target contributions and membership fee 3,106 8,410
Electricity for resale z 7,540,440
Other expenses 2,020,869 2,607,346
75,204,444 88,958,841

Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable recognized in the reporting period relates to impairment of trade
receivables from the companies with which there is disagreement on electricity transmission, as well as companies

with outstanding resale of electricity and capacity.

Costs under Service Concession Arrangements represent the Group’s construction costs of objects of the Service

Concession Arrangement (Note 13).

Loss on impairment of fixed assets recognized during the period is determined as a result of testing of the Group’s

assets for economic impairment (Note 12).

9 PERSONNEL COSTS
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Salaries and wages 11,544,584 11,035,870
Contribution to the state pension fund 2,757,467 2,610,454
Compulsory social security contributions 1,075,075 941,900
Unused vacation provision 997,806 790,065
Finance aid 615,511 574,821
Remuneration to management provision 247672 148,988
Current service cost (Note 24) 73,905 107,212
Past service cost (Note 24) 6,680 24,002
Remeasurements of other long term benefits (Note 24) = (34)
Other personnel costs 479,796 451,391
17,798,496 16,684,669

The average number of employees (including production and non-production staff) in 2015 was 29,677 (in 2014:

30,337 employees).
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10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
Year ended Year ended
Finance income 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Interest income 290,719 117,972
Dividends 17,526 25,056
308,245 143,028
Finance costs
Interest expense 4,352,520 2,512,823
Interest on finance lease liabilities 5,402 72,463
Interest expense on employee benefits obligation (Note 24 b) 223,879 188,253
4,581,801 2,773,539

11 INCOME TAX BENEFIT/EXPENSE

The Group’s applicable tax rate is the income tax rate of 20%. For the years ended 31 December income tax benefit /

(expense) is as follows:

Year ended
31 December 2015

Year ended
31 December 2014

Current tax expense

Current year (943,326) (1,022,131)
Adjustment for prior years 194,838 81,889
(748,488) (940,242)

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,171,424) 1,056,727
Change in tax base of property, plant and equipment 92 (2,668)
(1,171,332) 1,054,059
(1,919,820) 113,817

In 2015, the Group recalculated the profit tax for prior periods (2013-2014), as a result of resolving differences with
contractors in the trial and the pre-trial order. As a result, income tax overprovided in prior periods, in accordance
with the adjusted tax declarations submitted to the tax authorities, amounted to RUB 194,838 thousand.

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014

Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax

Tax Net of tax

Remeasurements of available-for-sale

financial assets 70,683 (14,137) 56,546 (11,533) 2,307 (9,226)

Reserve for remeasurements of defined

benefit plans (181,439) 27476  (153,963) 585,257  (43,617) 541,640
(110,756) 13,339 (97,417) 573,724  (41,310) 532,414
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated

Reconciliation of profit before income tax is as follows:

(Loss) / profit before income tax

Income tax expense at applicable tax rate
Adjustment for prior periods

Change in the tax base of property, plant and
equipment

Net tax effect of expenses not deductible/not taxable
for taxation purposes

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2015 % 31 December 2014 %
2,800,767 100 (3,398,338) 100
(560,153) (20) 679,668 (20}
194,838 7 81,889 (2)
92 - (2,668) -
(1,554,597) (56) (645,072) 19
(1,919,820) (69) 113,817 3)
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Equipment for

Land and Transmission electricity Construction

buildings networks transformation Other in progress Total
Deemed cost
Balance at | January 2014 24,509,284 44,507,969 25,253,138 14,698,795 4,358,006 113,327,192
Reclassification between
groups (4,672) 38,966 80,233 (114,527) - -
Additions 60,265 268,223 83,550 5,056  12,359.461 12,776,555
Transfers 2,970,784 5,816,856 2,850,649 1,409,831 (13,048,120) -
Disposals (5,129) (50,631) (237,311) (333,399) (90,137 (716,607)
Balance at 31 December
2014 27,530,532 50,581,383 28,030,259 15,665,756 3,579,210 125,387,140
Balance at | January 2015 27,530,532 50,581,383 28,030,259 15,665,756 3,579,210 125,387,140
Reclassification between
groups 1,093,197 (1,120,604) 30,133 (2,726) - “
Additions 83,849 526,143 151,900 179 12,343,409 13,105,480
Transfers 2,890,902 4.808,431 3,503,354 1,088,507 (12,291,194) -
Disposals (9,096) (35,932) (25,340) (214,672) (152,644) (437,684)
Balance at 31 December
2015 31,589,384 54,759,421 31,690,306 16,537,044 3,478,781 138,054,936
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance at 1 January 2014 (5,280,452) (16,443,278) (6,843,569) (6,686,151) - (35,253,450)
Reclassification between
groups (1,892) (20,044) (18,408) 40,344 - -
Depreciation for the
period (1,499,176) (3,148,426) (1,631,712) (1,996,508) - (8,275,822)
Disposals 2,190 28,318 87,148 167,640 - 285,296
Impairment (1,804,219) (4,080,386) (1,969,657) (626,627) (575,833) (9,056,722)
Balance at 31 December
2014 (8,583,549) (23,663,816) (10,376,198) (9,101,302) (575,833) (52,300,698)
Balance at 1 January 2015 (8,583.549) (23,663,816) (10,376,198) (9,101,302) (575,833)  (52,300,698)
Reclassification between
groups (316,050) 147,860 (165,737) 108,575 225,352 =
Depreciation for the
period (1,302,092) (2,923,034) (1,599,690) (1,764,112) - (7,588,928)
Disposals 3,538 30,694 18,459 123,038 26,961 202,690
Impairment (12,210) (304,282) (217,028) 10,780 (146,106) (728,846)
Balance at 31 December
2015 (10,210,363) (26,772,578) (12,340,194)  (10,623,021) (469,626) (60,415,782)
Net book value
At 1 January 2014 19,228,832 28,064,691 18,409,569 8,012,644 4,358,006 78,073,742
At 31 December 2014 18,946,983 26,917,567 17,654,061 6,564,454 3,003,377 73,086,442
At 31 December 2015 21,379,021 27,986,843 19,350,112 5,914,023 3,009,155 77,639,154
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As at 31 December 2015 construction in progress includes prepayments for property, plant and equipment of RUB
2,782 thousand (as at 31 December 2014: RUB 10,090 thousand) and inventories for the construction of property,
plant and equipment of RUB 334,349 thousand (as at 31 December 2014: RUB 177,948 thousand).

Borrowing costs totalling RUB 274,810 thousand with a capitalisation rate of 8.75-18% during 2015 (2014: RUB
225,974 thousand with a capitalization rate of 7.25-11.4%) were included in the cost of property, plant and equipment
and represent interest on loans.

Leased property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 20135, the Group leases transportation vehicles (as at 31 December 2014 - transportation vehicles
and equipment for electricity transformation) under a finance lease agreements. Title to the leased assets transfers to
the Group at the end of lease.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 the net book value of leased property, plant and equipment, accounted
for as part of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, was as follows:

Equipment for electricity

transformation Other Total
Cost 8,188 552,062 560,250
Accumulated depreciation (2,877) (130,748) (133,625)
Net book value at 31 December 2014 5,311 421,314 426,625
Cost - 32,663 32,663
Accumulated depreciation - (14,247) (14,247)
Net book value at 31 December 2015 - 18,416 18,416

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Due to the negative impact of macroeconomic factors on Russian economy the Group performed a test for impairment
of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

As a result of the impairment test as at 31 December 2015 loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment was
recognized in the amount of RUB 1,970,041 thousand for “Lipetskenergo” (as at 31 December 2014 in the amount of
RUB 9,056,722 thousand, including RUB 1,242,721 thousand for “Kurskenergo”, RUB 7,682,624 thousand for
“Lipetskenergo”, RUB 131,377 thousand for “Yarenergo” with OJSC “Yargorelectroset™), thus loss recognized as at
31 December 2014 and partially amortized was reversed in the amount of RUB 1,241,195 thousand, including RUB
1,107,744 thousand for “Kurskenergo”, RUB 119,101 thousand for “Yarenergo™.

. v Recognized Reversal Impairment
Impairment at Depreciation ; , .
31 Decerbier snil disposals impairment at ofimpairment at 31
2014 during 2015 31 December at 31 December December
Division £ 2015 2015 2015
Kurskenergo 1,242,721 (134,977) - (1,107,744) -
Lipetskenergo 7,682,624 (635,213) 1,970,041 (14,350) 9,003,102
Yarenergo 131,377 (12,276) - (119,101) -
Total 9,056,722 (782,466) 1,970,041 (1,241,195) 9,003,102

The majority of the Group’s property, plant and equipment is specialized in nature and is rarely sold on the open
market other than as part of a continuing business. The market for similar property, plant and equipment is not active
in the Russian Federation and does not provide a sufficient number of sales transactions for use of a market-based
approach for determination of the fair value.
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Therefore, the values in use for property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2015 and as at 31 December 2014
were determined using projected cash flows. This method considers the future net cash flows expected to be generated
through the usage of property, plant and equipment in the process of operating activities up to its ultimate disposal to
determine the recoverable amount of the assets.

Each cash-generating unit (CGU) is determined by the Group based on the geographical location of the Company’s
branches and subsidiaries which is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets.

The following key assumptions were used in determining the recoverable amounts of each of the cash-generating units:

+ cash flows were predicted on the basis of the provisions of the guidelines for the testing of power grid assets for
impairment (approved by the Order of PISC “Russian Grids” No. 583p of 15.12.2015 and forecast data for the period
up to 2020);

» forecast cash flows were prepared for the period 2016-2020 for all the CGUs and were based on the best estimate
of the Group’s Management in respect of the transmission volumes, operating and capital expenditures and tariffs
approved by regulatory bodies for 2016;

* distribution tariffs for forecasted period were estimated using business plans, amended and approved by PJSC
“Russian Grids"which were based on the tariff models prepared taking into account annual average growth of tariffs
for electricity transmission services (in accordance with “The socio-economic development of the Russian Federation
for 2016 and the planning period of 2017-2018”). Tariffs growth rates in 2019-2020 are restricted by inflation rates
according to Ministry of Economic Development of the Russian Federation (till 2030);

* forecasted transmission volumes for all CGUs were determined based on the Company’s business plans for 2016-
2020;

* the cash flow forecasts were discounted to their present value at the nominal weighted average cost of capital of
11.31% (2014: 11,16%);

* growth rate of the net cash flows amounted to 2.6% in the post-forecasted period.

Quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs used in assessing value in use, are disclosed below:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Growth rate of necessary gross revenue to the
previous year 7.74% 4.56% 5.10% 6.91% 6.56%
Productive supply (“boiler”), million KWh 56,847 52,788 48,394 48,741 49,066
Inflation forecast of the MED 8.28% 6.68% 5.50% 4.00% 3.50%
The level of capital investment, millions of
Russian Roubles 6,718 7,503 9,357 9,147 10,478

Sensitivity analysis for key assumptions for PJSC “IDGC of Centre” is presented below:

* increase of discount rate by 1% increases impairment loss by RUB 213,017 thousand:;

e  reduction of necessary gross revenue to the base value in each period by 3% increases impairment loss by RUB
3,243,817 thousand;

*  increase of operating expenses level to the base value in each period by 5% increases impairment loss by RUB
4,322,170 thousand;

*  increase of capital investment level in the forecasted and post-forecasted period by 10% increases impairment
loss by RUB 265,234 thousand.
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Research and Other intangible

Software development assets Total
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 380,981 77,030 966,705 1,424,716
Reclassification between groups - (68,547) 68,547 -
Additions 174,136 31,673 86,735 292,544
Disposals (140.621) (20,836) (462,081) (623,538)
Balance at 31 December 2014 414,496 19,320 659,906 1,093,722
Balance at 1 January 2015 414,496 19,320 659,906 1,093,722
Reclassification between groups 513,937 - (513,937) -
Additions 433,264 24,591 972,592 1,430,447
Disposals (400,545) - - (400,545)
Balance at 31 December 2015 961,152 43,911 1,118,561 2,123,624
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2014 (164,754) - (644,041) (808,795)
Amortisation for the period (146,100) - (150,439) (296,539)
Disposals 140,606 - 462,004 602,610
Balance at 31 December 2014 (170,248) - (332,476) (502,724)
Balance at 1 January 2015 (170,248) - (332,476) (502,724)
Reclassification between groups (287,650) - 287,650 -
Amortisation for the period (202,065) - (21,930) (223,995)
Disposals 400,545 - - 400,545
Balance at 31 December 2015 (259,418) - (66,756) (326,174)
Net book value
At 1 January 2014 216,227 77,030 322,664 615,921
At 31 December 2014 244,248 19,320 327,430 590,998
At 31 December 2015 701,734 43,911 1,051,805 1,797,450

In 2015, the intangible assets of the Group (subgroup “Other intangible assets™) include a right to charge fee from users
of services on electricity transmission in accordance with “Service Concession Arrangement concerning the financing,
establishment and operation of facilities for the transmission and distribution of electric energy on the territory of the
Tambov region”. This agreement provides for the construction by a Group of objects for the purposes of transmission
and distribution of electricity in the Tambov region and the provision of transmission services, electricity distribution
and connection services with the use of objects of the Service Concession Arrangement. Ownership of the constructed
objects belongs to the Tambov region, and the Group receives the right of possession and use of objects for the Group
activities. The Service Concession Arrangement is concluded for 20 years. The calculation of long-term gross revenue
from transmission of electricity produced by the parties taking into account the planned change of tariffs provided by
the Forecast “The socio-economic development of the Russian Federation for 2016 and the planning period of 2017-
2018” and should be reviewed annually. Thus during the term of the Service Concession Arrangement the
administration of Tambov region can provide the Group with subsidies in terms of payment of the consideration for
construction of objects, and in part compensation for lost revenue from electricity transmission. The group is obliged
to support the objects of the agreement in good condition, produce for own account current and capital repairs, to cover
the costs for facility maintenance. At the end of the term of the agreement the Group has the right to redeem the objects
of the agreement pursuant to the Federal Law of 21 December 2001 Ne 178-FZ “On privatization of state and municipal

property”.
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The intangible asset is recognized at fair value of the consideration receivable by the Group for the construction of
objects of the Service Concession Arrangement in the amount of RUB 972,341 thousand (Note 7). The construction
costs amounted to RUB 875,983 thousand (Note 8). Profit from construction of objects of the Service Concession
Arrangement was recognized by the Group in the amount of RUB 96,358 thousand.

14 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

Assets Liabilities Net
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Property, plant and equipment - 11,288 (6,669,266)  (5,232,829)  (6,669,266)  (5,221,541)
Intangible assets - - (19,271) - (19,271) -
Investments and financial
assets - = (87,739) (77,004) (87,739) (77,004)
Inventories 600 1,340 - - 600 1,340
Trade and other receivables 833,035 604,998 2 - 833,035 604,998
Finance lease liabilities 301 16,798 = 5 301 16,798
Loans and borrowings - - (3,964) (758) (3,964) (758)
Post-employment benefit
liability 247,613 210,119 - - 247,613 210,119
Provision for employee
payables 126,216 116,578 - = 126,216 116,578
Trade and other payables 393,352 329,034 = - 393,352 329,034
Other 1,272 439 (139) - 1,133 439
Deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) 1,602,389 1,290,594  (6,780,379)  (5310,591)  (5,177,990)  (4,019,997)

b) Movements in temporary differences during the period

Recognised in other

Recognised in comprehensive

1 January 2015 profit or loss income 31 December 2015
Property, plant and equipment (5,221,541) (1,272,528) - (6,494,069)
Intangible assets = (194,468) - (194,468)
Investments and financial assets (77,004) 3,402 (14,137) (87,739)
Inventories 1,340 (740) - 600
Trade and other receivables 604,998 228,037 - 833,035
Finance lease liabilities 16,798 (16,497) = 301
Loans and borrowings (758) (3,206) - - (3,964)
Post-employment benefit liability 210,119 10,018 27,476 247,613
Provision for employee payables 116,578 9,638 = 126,216
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Recognised in other

Recognised in comprehensive
1 January 2015 profit or loss income 31 December 2015
Trade and other payables 329,034 64318 - 393,352
Other 439 694 o 1,133
(4,019,997) (1,171,332) 13,339 (5,177,990)

Recognised in other

Recognised in comprehensive
1 January 2014 profit or loss income 31 December 2014
Property, plant and equipment (6,583,546) 1,362,005 - (5.221,541)
Investments and financial assets (71,001) (8,310) 2,307 (77,004)
Inventories 978 362 - 1,340
Trade and other receivables 864,367 (259,369) - 604,998
Finance lease liabilities 115,471 (98,673) - 16,798
Loans and borrowings (1,644) 886 - - (758)
Post-employment benefit liability 248,057 5,679 (43,617) 210,119
Provision for employee payables 151,970 (35,392) = 116,578
Trade and other payables 247,172 81,862 . 329,034
Other (4,570) 5,009 - 439
(5,032,746) 1,054,059 (41,310) (4,019,997)
15 INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Assets related to the employee benefit fund 438,693 385,019
Available-for-sale financial assets 234,369 165,620
673,062 550,639

Financial assets related to the employee benefit fund relate to the Group’s contributions accumulated in the solidary
and employees’ individual pension accounts with the Non-State Pension Fund of Electric Power Industry (employee
benefit fund). These assets are not assets of the plan, because under the terms of existing agreements with the Fund
the Group is able to use the above contributions to reduce future contributions, or for compensation though the funding
of other plans, or transfer to another fund on its own initiative (recoverable amount is 80%).

Available-for-sale financial assets represent investments in shares of JSC E.ON Russia and other securities, which are
listed on CJSC “MICEX Stock Exchange”, recorded at fair market value (belong to Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy).
In 2015 the Group recognized gain on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets in the amount of RUB 70,683
thousand as a component of other comprehensive income (2014: impairment loss RUB 11,533 thousand).

The Group’s exposure related to credit risks and impairment losses related to financial assets is disclosed in Note 28.
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16 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Trade accounts receivable 21,825 36,944
Trade accounts receivable impairment allowance (489) -
Non-current prepayments 3,250 7,319
Other accounts receivable 41,182 6,229
Other accounts receivable impairment allowance - (382)
Other assets = 36,684
65,768 86,794

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in bank accounts in the amount of RUB 123,220 thousand (as at 31 December

2014: RUB 395,836 thousand).

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Trade receivables 26,718,559 24 358,108
Trade receivables impairment allowance (11,335,201) (10,323,204)
Other receivables 1,299,127 1,357,777
Other receivables impairment allowance (501,482) (181,567)
Total financial assets 16,181,003 15,211,114
Prepayments 212,160 445,028
Prepayments impairment allowance (93,886) (1,383)
VAT recoverable 405,315 416,952
Prepaid taxes other than income tax 57,660 199,922
16,762,252 16,271,633

For more detailed information concerning the Group’s exposure to credit risks and impairment losses related to trade

and other receivables refer to Note 28.

19 INVENTORIES

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Materials and supplies 1,182,517 1,810,693
Other inventories 832,887 4,547
Total inventories 2,015,404 1,815,240
Less: provision for inventory obsolescence (3,001) (6,701)
Total 2,012,403 1,808,539
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20 EQUITY
(a) Share capital
Ordinary shares
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Issued shares, fully paid, number 42.217,941,468 42.217,941,468
Par value of one share (in RUB) 0.10 0.10
(b) Dividends

In accordance with Russian legislation the Company’s distributable reserves are limited to the balance of accumulated
retained earnings as recorded in the Company’s statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with Russian
Accounting Principles.

At the annual shareholders meeting held on 26 June 2014 the decision was made to distribute the Company’s profit
for the year 2013 to dividends in the amount of RUB 75,992 thousand and to pay dividends for the year 2013 in the
amount of RUB 0.0018 per ordinary share of the Company in cash.

At the annual shareholders meeting held on 26 June 2015 the decision was made to distribute the Company’s profit
for the year 2014 to dividends in the amount of RUB 831,693 thousand and to pay dividends for the year 2014 in the
amount of RUB 0.0197 per ordinary share of the Company in cash.

In 2015, the Company recovered unclaimed dividends for 2011 in the amount of RUB 4,069 thousand (in 2014 — in
the amount of RUB 5,782 thousand for 2010).

21 LOSS / EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share was based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Authorised (ordinary) shares (number) 42,217,941,468 42.217,941,468
Par value of one share (in RUB) 0.10 0.10
Weighted average number of shares 42,217,941,468 42,217,941,468
(Loss) / profit for the year attributable to shareholders 852,807 (3,318,288)
(Loss) / earning per share (in RUB): basic and diluted 0.020 (0.079)
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23 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
The finance lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets.

In 2015 the Group leases transportation vehicles (in 2014 - transportation vehicles and equipment for electricity
transformation) under finance lease agreements. Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

At 31 December 2015

Future minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments Interest
Less than one year 1,629 1,503 126
Between one and five years - - -
1,629 1,503 126

At 31 December 2014

Future minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments Interest
Less than one year 87,761 82,485 5,276
Between one and five years 1,629 1,503 126
89,390 83,988 5,402

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The tables below provide information about the employee benefit obligations and actuarial assumptions used for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

(a) Net liability in Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Recognised post-employment benefit 2,344,882 2,051,491
Recognised other long term liability - -
Total recognised liability 2,344,882 2,051,491
(b) Movements in the defined benefit liability

Other long-term

Post-employment benefit Total liability

liability
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Balance at 1 January 2,051,491 2,524,679 - 2,672 2,051,491 2,527,351
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 73,905 107,212 - - 73,905 107,212
Past service cost ) 6,680 25,863 - (1,861) 6,680 24,002
Interest cost 223,879 188,113 - 140 223,879 188,253
Remeasurements of other long term benefits - - - (34) - (34)
304,464 321,188 - (1,755) 304,404 319,433

Included in OCI

Remeasurements loss (gain):
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- Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- demographic assumptions
- financial assumptions

- experience adjustment

Other
Benefits paid

Balance at 31 December

(e) Actuarial assumptions

Post-employment benefit

Other long-term

Total liability

liability

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(46,392)  (186,012) . . (46,392)  (186,012)
230324 (263,716) . - 230,324  (263,716)
(2493) (135,529 - . (2493)  (135,529)
181,439 (585,257) . ’ 181,439  (585,257)
(192,512)  (209,119) - (917 (192,512)  (210,036)
2,344,882 2,051,491 - - 2,344,882 2,051,491

Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate, annual
Future salary increase, per year
Inflation rate, per year

Average staff turnover

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

9.50%
6.00%
6.00%
6.00%

12.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%

Assumptions regarding fiuture mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The current
longevities underlying the values of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date were as follows.

Longevity at age 60 for current pensioners
Males

Females

Longevity at age 60 for current members aged 45

Males

Females

2015 2014
19 19
25 25
22 22
27 27

At31 December 2015, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 7.1 years (2014: 6.6 years).

The amount of expected payments under defined benefit plans for 2016 is RUB 226,586 thousand.
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(d) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Impact of movement in actuarial assumptions

31 December 2015 on Defined benefit plan obligation

Actuarial assumptions Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.5% movement) -3.65% 3.65%
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 0.90% -0.90%
Future pension growth (0.5% movement) 2.88% -2.88%
Staff turnover (10% movement) -0.93% 0.93%
Future mortality (10% movement) -1.23% 1.23%

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does

provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

25 EMPLOYEE PAYABLES
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Salaries and wages payable 8,922 58,956
Unused vacation provision 344,827 384,271
Annual bonus provision 286,061 197,997
Provision for termination benefits 190 621
640,000 641,845

Provision for annual bonuses includes bonuses and other similar payments accrued (including compulsory social

security contributions) based on employees’ performance.

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, PROVISIONS
Current trade and other payables include:

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Trade accounts payable 4,907,108 5,348,193
Other payables 1,355,955 693,763
Advances from customers 2,048,474 1,997,485

8,311,537 8,039,441

As a part of current liabilities, there is litigation provision, which includes:

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 1,162,928 1,187,124
Provision increase during the year 1,074,233 840,472
Decrease due to the use of provision (348,168) (402,468)
Decrease due to reversal (789,121) (462,200)
Balance at 31 December 1,099,872 1,162,928

Non-current trade and other payables include:
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Advances from customers 365,804 571,740
Other trade payables 14,884 8,403
380,688 580,143

Advances from customers are mainly represented by prepayments received from customers under contracts of
technical connection to the power grid.

27 OTHER TAXES PAYABLE

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Value added tax 910,038 586,325
Compulsory social security contributions 421,964 343,005
Property tax 145,911 41,690
Other taxes 16,486 22,174

1,494,399 993,194

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e credit risk;

o liquidity risk;

e market risk.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings, because no
significant sales, purchases, or borrowings are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Company, which is the Russian Rouble.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital.

The Group’s principal objective when managing capital risk is to sustain its creditworthiness and a normal level of
capital adequacy for doing business as a going concern, in order to ensure returns for shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of borrowed capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment
securities.

@ Trade and other receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.

To manage credit risk the Group attempts, to the fullest extent possible, to demand prepayments from customers. As
a rule, prepayment for connection services is set in a contract and depends on the amount of capacity to be connected.

The customer base for electricity transmission services is limited to several distribution companies and a small number
of large manufacturing/extraction enterprises. Payments are tracked regularly and electricity transmission customers
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are advised of any failures to submit timely payments. For quick collection and complete control of accounts
receivable collection activities are performed to reduce the Company’s finance losses, caused by non-fulfilment or
insufficient fulfilment by some contractors of their contractual obligations,

The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
and other receivables that relate to individually significant exposures.

(@) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date was:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Trade and other receivables 16,243,521 15,253,905
Cash and cash equivalents 123,220 395,836
16,366,741 15,649,741

The Group’s two most significant customers, regional distribution entities, account for RUB 5,239,024 thousand of
the trade receivables carrying amount at 31 December 2015 (at 31 December 2014: RUB 3,233,035 thousand).

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables (excluding other receivables) at the reporting date by type
of customer was:

Carrying amount Carrying amount
at 31 December 2015  at 31 December 2014

Electricity transmission custormiers 13,210,035 10,411,303
Consumers of electricity and capacity 1,837,013 3,143,350
Connection services customers 176,016 232297
Other customers 181,630 284,898

15,404,694 14,071,848

Impairment losses

The tables below analyse the Group’s trade and other receivables into relevant groups based on the past due periods:

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
Carrying amount Allowance Carrying amount Allowance
Not past due 7,602,048 (39.217) 7,726,324 (12,687)
Past due 0-3 months 3,472,186 (155,276) 2,778,359 (174,349)
Past due 3-6 months 713,945 (100,480) 1,342,147 (25,102)
Past due 6-12 months 2,216,021 (424,166) 4,522,617 (1,179,890)
Past due more than 12 months 14,076,493 (11,118,033) 9,389,611 (9,113,125)
28,080,693 (11,837,172) 25,759,058 (10,505,153)

The movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the period were as
follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Balance at 1 January 10,505,153 10,758,120
Increase during the period 2,214,226 2,001,797
Amounts written-off against trade and other receivables (74,803) (71,635)
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Decrease due to reversal of amounts written off (807,404) (2,183,129)
Balance at 31 December 11,837,172 10,505,153
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group
monitors the risk of cash shortfalls by means of current liquidity planning. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
This approach is used to analyse payment dates associated with financial assets, and also to forecast cash flows from
operating activities.

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group has negotiated long-term and short-term credit lines with a pool of banks.

As at 31 December 2014 the Group’s unused portion of long-term and short-term credit line facilities amounted to
RUB 10,150,000 thousand (as at 31 December 2013: RUB 8,800,000 thousand).
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(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates will affect the Group’s income or the value
of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Interest rate risk

Substantially all the operations of the Group are denominated in Russian Roubles, hence the Group is not exposed to
significant currency risk.

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to interest rate risk only through market value fluctuations of loans and borrowings. The interest
rates on most long- and short-term loans and borrowings are fixed. Changes in interest rates impact primarily loans
and borrowings by changing either their fair value (fixed rate debt) or their future cash flows (variable rate debt).

The Group Management does not have a formal policy of determining how much of the Group’s exposure should be
to fixed or variable rates. However, at the time of raising new loans or borrowings management uses its judgment to
decide whether it believes that a fixed or variable rate would be more favourable to the Group over the expected period
until maturity.

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying amount Carrying amount
Fixed rate instruments 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Loans and borrowings, finance lease liability 42,113,188 37,363,924

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, and
the Group does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge
accounting model. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

(e) Accounting classifications and fair values

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts as at
31 December 2015.

The Group measures at fair value available-for-sale financial assets represented by equity securities (Note 15).

[§3)] Capital management

Management’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines
as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders’ equity.

Management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the period.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to external capital requirements that require that their net assets as
determined in accordance with Russian Accounting Principles must exceed their charter capital at all times.
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As at the end of the reporting year the debt-to-equity ratio for the Group was as follows:

Carrying value

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Agpgregate liabilities 61,562,627 54,862,332
Less: cash and cash equivalents (123,220) (395,836)
Net debt 61,439,407 54,466,496
Shareholders’ equity 38,886,343 38,931,662
Gearing ratio 158% 140%

29 OPERATING LEASES

The Group leases a number of land plots owned by local governments under operating leases. In addition, the Group
leases non-residential premises and vehicles.

Land leases were entered in prior periods and represented land plots on which power lines, equipment for electricity
transformation and other assets are located. The land leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 49 years, with an
option to renew the lease after that date. Lease payments are reviewed regularly to reflect market rentals.

The land title does not pass and the landlord retains control over land usage. The Group determined that substantially
all the risks and rewards of the land plots are with the landlord, therefore the leases are considered as operating leases.

Operating lease rentals under non-cancellable leases are payable as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Less than one year 535471 529,490
Between one year and five years 663,997 925,366
More than five years 4,320,503 4,266,724

5,519,971 5,721,580

The amount of lease expense under operating leases recognised in profit or loss in 2015 was RUB 549,588 thousand
(in 2014: RUB 524,064 thousand).

30 COMMITMENTS

The Group has outstanding commitments under the contracts for the purchase and construction of the items of property,
plant and equipment for RUB 6,462,396 thousand as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014: RUB 4,590,346
thousand).

31 CONTINGENCIES

(a) Insurance

The insurance industry in the Russian Federation is in a developing state and many forms of insurance protection
common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Group has reliable insurance coverage for its
property: industrial buildings, structures and premises, air and cable transmission lines, energy (power) machines and
others. In addition, insurance covers risks that could lead to losses in the event of damage to third parties (health,
property) arising from operation of dangerous production units. The Group has no insurance coverage against losses
caused by business interruption.
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(b) Litigation

The Group is a party to certain legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Management does not
believe than these matters will have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position and operating results.
Changes in litigation provisions are presented in Note 26.

(e) Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in the Russian Federation continues to evolve and is characterised by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes, contradictory and subject to varying
interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities,
which have the authority to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by
the tax authorities during the three subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may
remain open longer. Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more
assertive position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation.

These circumstances may create tax risks in the Russian Federation that are substantially more significant than in other
countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of
applicable Russian tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However, the interpretations of the
relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these Consolidated Financial Statements, if the authorities were
successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.

(d) Environmental matters

The Company and its predecessors have operated in the electric transmission industry in the Russian Federation for
many years. The enforcement of environmental regulations in the Russian Federation is evolving and the enforcement
posture of Government authorities is continually being reconsidered. Management periodically evaluates its
obligations under environmental regulations.

Potential liabilities might arise as a result of changes in legislation and regulation or civil litigation. The impact of
these potential changes cannot be estimated, but could be material. In the current enforcement climate under existing
legislation, management believes that there are no significant liabilities for environmental damage.

(e) Other contingencies

The Group believes that the electricity services provided are in compliance with the Russian legislation regulating
electric power transmission. Other contingencies to disclose as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are
absent.

03] Guarantees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no issued financial guarantees for loans and borrowings.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Control relationships

The Company’s parent as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 was PJSC “Russian Grids”. The party with
the ultimate control over the Company is the Government of the Russian Federation, which held the majority of the
voting rights of PJSC “Russian Grids”. The economic, social and other policies of the Government of the Russian
Federation could have a significant impact on the Group's activities.
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(b) Transactions with parent company and entities under control of parent company
Transaction value for the year Balance
ended 31 December as at 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014

Sale of goods and services: 313,050 36,065 55,745 42,368
Parent company = 22,108 - 25,169
Fellow subsidiaries 313,050 13,957 55,745 17,199
Purchase of goods and services: 17,368,367 15,795,380 2,144,793 2,511,357
Parent company 384,647 371,975 22617 20,201
Fellow subsidiaries 16,983,720 15,423,405 2,122,176 2,491,156
Advances given: = - 33,881 108,375
Fellow subsidiaries - - 33,881 108,375
Advances received: = - 167,040 167,011
Fellow subsidiaries - - 167,040 167,011
(©) Management compensation

There are no transactions or balances with key management and their close family members except for remuneration
in the form of salary and bonuses.

Total remuneration to key management, Board of Directors and Management Board members for the reporting year,
included into personnel costs (Note 9) was:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Salary and bonuses (including contributions to state insurance
funds) 258,442 306,280
Pensions and post-employment benefits 397 265

The amount of commitments to key management personnel included in employee benefit obligations (Note 25) was
as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Present value of defined benefit and defined contribution
plans, as well as other payments for post-employment
benefits 3,994 2,465

(d) Transactions with government-related entities

The Group applies the exemption in IAS 24 Related party disclosures that allows to present reduced related party
disclosures regarding transactions with government-related entities.

In the course of business, the Group makes a significant number of transactions with companies that are government-
related. These operations are carried out under the regulated tariffs, or in accordance with market prices.

Revenues from government-related entities accounts for 20% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015, (for the year ended 31 December 2014: 24%) including 21% of the proceeds from the transmission
of electricity (for the year ended 31 December 2014: 23%).
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Costs of electricity transmission for government-related entities account for 44% of the total cost of the electricity
transmission for the year ended 31 December 2015 (for the year ended 31 December 2014: 15%).

During 2015, the Group made three issues of non-convertible documentary interest - bearing bonds with a total
nominal value of RUB 15,000,000 thousand with a nominal interest rate of 11.58-12.42% per annum. The maturity of
the bonds is 3-7 years. Two issues of the interest - bearing bonds with a total nominal value of RUB 10,000,000
thousand with a nominal interest rate of 11.58-12.42% per annum have been purchased by PJSC “Russian Grids”.

(e) Loans and borrowings received from government-related entities

Addition of loans The balance of Addition of loans The balance of

and borrowings transactions and borrowings transactions
2015 31 December 2015 2014 31 December 2014
Loans and borrowings received 5,792,342 23,467,055 6,650,000 24,872,738
5,792,342 23,467,055 6,650,000 24,872,738

Loans and borrowings are drawn at the market interest rate (Note 28).
(4i] Pricing policy

Transactions with related parties for the transmission of electricity are carried out at the tariffs set by the state.

33 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the balance sheet date, which should be reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the reporting
period, have not been identified.
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